
From: ASCC New Claims
To: Thomas Burns (DOC)
Cc: Kathryn Irby
Subject: CLAIM: Romario Waller v. ADC, Claim No. 241591
Date: Wednesday, March 27, 2024 1:25:00 PM
Attachments: Romario Waller ADC agency ltr 241591.pdf

Romario Waller Claim 241591.pdf

Please see attached. Contact Kathryn Irby with any questions.

Thank you,
Caitlin

Caitlin McDaniel
Administrative Specialist II
Arkansas State Claims Commission
101 East Capitol Avenue, Suite 410
Little Rock, Arkansas 72201
(501) 682-1619
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March 27, 2024 
 
 
Mr. Thomas Burns          (via email) 
Arkansas Division of Correction 
6814 Princeton Pike 
Pine Bluff, Arkansas 71602 
 
RE: Romario Waller v. Arkansas Division of Correction  

Claim No.  241591 
____________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Dear Mr. Burns, 
 
  Enclosed please find a copy of the above-styled claim filed against the Arkansas Division 
of Correction. Pursuant to the Arkansas Rules of Civil Procedure, as well as Claims Commission 
Rule 2.2, you have thirty days from the date of service in which to file a responsive pleading. 
 
  Your responsive pleading should include your agency number, fund code, appropriation 
code, and activity/section/unit/element that this claim should be charged against, if liability is 
admitted, or if the Claims Commission approves this claim for payment. This information is 
necessary even if your agency denies liability. 
 
      Sincerely, 
 
      Mika Tucker 
 
ES:  cmcdaniel 
 
cc:   Romario Waller (ADC , Claimant (w/ encl.)  
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From: Thomas Burns (DOC)
To: ASCC Pleadings
Cc: Tawnie Rowell (DOC); Miles S. Morgan; Courtney Wall (DOC)
Subject: Romario Waller v ADC 241591
Date: Monday, April 1, 2024 8:59:39 AM
Attachments: 3510 001.pdf

image001.png

Answer
 
Thank you,
-TB
 

 
Confidentiality Notice: This e-mail message and any attachments is the property of the State
of Arkansas and may be protected by state and federal laws governing disclosure of private
information. It is for the intended recipient only. If an addressing or transmission error has
misdirected this e-mail, please notify the author by replying to it. If you are not the intended
recipient you may not use, disclose, distribute, copy, print or rely on this email.
 

I.1

13



I.1

14



I.1

15



From: Misty Scott on behalf of ASCC Pleadings
To: Thomas Burns (DOC); Tawnie Rowell (DOC)
Cc: ASCC Pleadings; Mika Tucker
Subject: CORR: Romario Waller v. ADC, Claim Nos. 241591 and 241592
Date: Thursday, April 18, 2024 8:35:31 AM
Attachments: Romario Waller v. ADC.pdf

Romario Waller v. ADC2.pdf

Thomas and Tawnie:
 
Please see attached. Contact Mika Tucker with any questions.
 
Thank you,
 

Misty
 
Misty Scott
Arkansas State Claims Commission
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From: Misty Scott on behalf of ASCC Pleadings
To: Tawnie Rowell (DOC)
Cc: ASCC Pleadings; Mika Tucker
Subject: CORR: Romario Waller v. ADC, Claim Nos. 241591 and 241592
Date: Monday, May 6, 2024 9:56:00 AM
Attachments: Romario Waller v. ADC.pdf

Ms. Rowell:
 
Please see attached. Contact Mika Tucker with any questions.
 
Thank you,
 

Misty
 
Misty Scott
Arkansas State Claims Commission
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From: Miles S. Morgan
To: ASCC Pleadings
Cc: Tawnie Rowell (DOC); Kris Higdon (DOC)
Subject: Romario Waller v. ADC 241591
Date: Wednesday, June 26, 2024 12:13:25 PM
Attachments: Safe Harbor Letter-Waller.pdf

image001.png

Safe Harbor letter.
 
Thanks,
 
-Miles
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June 26, 2024 

 

Mr. Romario Waller (ADC  

 

 

 

Re:   Romario Waller v ADC 

 Claim Nos. 241591 & 241592 

 

Dear Mr. Waller: 

 

I am in receipt of your Discovery Requests. These are not correctly formatted, nor correctly stated, 

in accordance with Rules 26, 33, 36, and 37 of the Arkansas Rules of Civil Procedure. Arkansas 

law makes it clear that Pro Se parties are held to the same standards as attorney and are presumed 

to know the law. I am pointing you to the correct rules so that you may correct deficiencies and be 

in compliance with the rules of Civil Procedure. 

 

Currently, we are seeking these corrections without the intervention of the Claims Commission. 

We will hold off for twenty-one (21) days to allow for you to have time to correct these 

deficiencies.  

  

Very truly yours, 

 

 

 

Miles S. Morgan 

    Arkansas Department of Correction  

 

 

 

MSM/ 

cc: File 

 ASCC 
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From: Trent Rigdon (DOC)
To: ASCC Pleadings
Subject: Claim 241591
Date: Tuesday, August 13, 2024 4:33:58 PM
Attachments: Response to Motion to Compel Disovery - Waller 241591.pdf

Please see attached.

Thank you,

Trent Rigdon
Deputy General Counsel
Office of the Secretary
479-746-1138
615 S Main St
Jonesboro, AR 72401
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BEFORE THE ARKANSAS STATE CLAIMS COMMISSION 

 

ROMARIO WALLER (ADC #       CLAIMANT 

 

v.      NO.  241591 

 

ARKANSAS DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

DIVISION OF CORRECTION              RESPONDENT 

 

RESPONSE TO MOTION TO COMPEL DISCOVERY 

  

 COMES NOW the Respondent, Arkansas Department of Corrections, and for its Response 

to Motion to Compel Discovery, states: 

 1. On or about July 5, 2024, Respondent received Claimant’s Motion to Compel 

Discovery. 

 2.  In his motion, Claimant states that on or about May 10, 2024, he mailed “Discovery 

Request” to the Arkansas Division of Correction’s attorney but did not receive a reply.  

 3. On or about May 17, 2024, Respondent received a letter from Claimant titled 

“Claimants Discovery Requests”. These requests did not adhere to Rule 26, 33, 36, and 37 and the 

Arkansas Rules of Civil Procedure.  

 4. Respondent sent a letter on June 26, 2024, to Claimant informing him of the 

requirement he send discovery in accordance with the rules of civil procedure, informing him he 

had 21 days to correct his deficiencies. No corrected or additional requests for discovery have been 

received. 

 5. Claimant further states that on approximately June 15, 2024, he wrote a letter to the 

attorney for the Division of Corrections concerning the discovery requests but received no reply. 

 6. Respondent is unaware of such a letter. 

 7. The Division of Corrections specifically denies that Claimant is entitled to an order 

compelling discovery responses. 
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 WHEREFORE, for the reasons cited herein, Respondent respectfully requests that 

Claimant’s Motion to Compel Discovery be denied, and that Claimant’s claim be dismissed with 

prejudice and that Claimant take nothing. 

      

      Respectfully submitted, 

      /s/ Trent Rigdon___    

                                                                        Trent Rigdon Ark. Bar No. 2015227 

      Arkansas Department of Corrections 

      1302 Pike Avenue, Suite C 

      North Little Rock, AR  72114 

      479-746-1138 Office 

      Trent.Rigdon@doc.arkansas.gov 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 

I certify that a copy of the above pleading has been served this 13th day of August 2024, on the 

Claimant by placing a copy of the same in the U. S. Mail, regular postage to: 

 

Romario Waller (  

 

           

             

        /s/ Trent Rigdon 

        Trent Rigdon 
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From: Kris Higdon (DOC)
To: ASCC Pleadings
Cc: Tawnie Rowell (DOC)
Subject: Romario Waller v. ADC, 241591
Date: Monday, September 9, 2024 1:21:40 PM
Attachments: SHL-September2024.pdf

Please see attached safe harbor letter. 
 
Kris Alan Higdon (Mr.)
Attorney at Law
Office of the Secretary
1302 Pike Ave., Suite C
North Little Rock, AR 72114
Phone: 501-682-9593
Kris.a.higdon@doc.arkansas.gov
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From: Misty Scott on behalf of ASCC Pleadings
To: Kris Higdon (DOC)
Cc: ASCC Pleadings; Yolanda Charles (DOC); Mika Tucker
Subject: ORDER: Romario Waller v. ADC, Claim Nos. 241591 and 241592
Date: Monday, December 16, 2024 9:29:48 AM
Attachments: Romario Waller v. ADC2.pdf

Romario Waller-order591.pdf
Romario Waller-order592.pdf

Mr. Higdon:
 
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
 
ROMARIO WALLER (ADC  CLAIMANT 
 
V. CLAIM NO. 241591 
 
ARKANSAS DIVISION OF 
CORRECTION                                                                                 RESPONDENT 

ORDER 

Now before the Arkansas State Claims Commission (the “Commission”) is a motion to 

compel filed by Romario Waller (the “Claimant”) seeking discovery from the Arkansas Division 

of Correction (the “Respondent”). Claimant’s motion for default judgment is also pending. Based 

upon a review of the motions, the arguments made therein, and the law of Arkansas, the 

Commission hereby finds as follows: 

1. Claimant filed his claim on March 8, 2024, seeking $10,000.00 in damages related 

to his allegations about Respondent’s employee falsifying disciplinary records and the related 

disciplinary proceedings.  

2. Respondent filed a timely answer. 

3. Claimant requested a hearing, then filed a motion to compel and motion for default 

judgment.  

4. In reviewing the filings in this matter, the Commission notes that Claimant’s claim 

may be outside the jurisdiction of the Commission. The Commission finds it to be prudent and 

efficient to address any jurisdictional concerns now to avoid any surprises after the parties and the 

Commission have expended more time and resources. Therefore, the Commission directs the 

parties to file briefs within 40 days of this Order, addressing whether the Commission has 

jurisdiction over this claim. This claim will be placed in abeyance until the Commission 

enters an order on the jurisdictional issue.  
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5. The Commission declines to set this claim for hearing or rule on the pending 

motions at this time.  
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IT IS SO ORDERED. 
 

                                                           

                                                    
      _______________________________________ 

ARKANSAS STATE CLAIMS COMMISSION 
Dee Holcomb 

 
    

       
      _______________________________________ 

ARKANSAS STATE CLAIMS COMMISSION 
Henry Kinslow 

    
 

       
      _______________________________________ 

ARKANSAS STATE CLAIMS COMMISSION 
Paul Morris, Chair 
 

              
      DATE: December 13, 2024 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Notice(s) which may apply to your claim 
(1) A party has forty (40) days from transmission of this Order to file a Motion for Reconsideration or a Notice of Appeal 

with the Claims Commission. Ark. Code Ann. § 19-10-211(a)(1). If a Motion for Reconsideration is denied, that 
party then has twenty (20) days from the transmission of the denial of the Motion for Reconsideration to file a Notice 
of Appeal with the Claims Commission. Ark. Code Ann. § 19-10-211(a)(1)(B)(ii). A decision of the Claims 
Commission may only be appealed to the General Assembly. Ark. Code Ann. § 19-10-211(a)(3). 
 

(2) If a Claimant is awarded less than $15,000.00 by the Claims Commission at hearing, that claim is held forty (40) 
days from the date of disposition before payment will be processed. See Ark. Code Ann. § 19-10-211(a). Note: This 
does not apply to agency admissions of liability and negotiated settlement agreements. 
 

(3) Awards or negotiated settlement agreements of $15,000.00 or more are referred to the General Assembly for approval 
and authorization to pay. Ark. Code Ann. § 19-10-215(b). 
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From: Kris Higdon (DOC)
To: ASCC Pleadings
Cc: Tawnie Rowell (DOC)
Subject: Romario Waller v. ADC, 241591
Date: Monday, January 13, 2025 7:28:10 AM
Attachments: ADC Brief in Support of Dismissal.pdf

Please see attached brief in support of dismissal
 
Kris Alan Higdon (Mr.)
Deputy General Counsel
1302 Pike Ave., Suite C
North Little Rock, AR 72114
Cell: (870) 643-1364
Kris.a.higdon@doc.arkansas.gov
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From: Misty Scott on behalf of ASCC Pleadings
To: Tawnie Hughes (DOC); Miles Morgan (DOC); Trent Rigdon (DOC); Taylor Reavis (DOC)
Cc: Mika Tucker; Yolanda Charles (DOC); ASCC Pleadings
Subject: ORDERS: Romario Waller v. ADC, Claim Nos. 241591 and 241592
Date: Thursday, September 11, 2025 3:15:00 PM
Attachments: Romario Waller v. ADC.pdf

Romario Waller-order241591.pdf
Romario Waller-order241592.pdf

Dear Counselors:
 
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

Now before the Arkansas State Claims Commission (the “Commission”) is the claim filed 

by Romario Waller (the “Claimant”) against the Arkansas Division of Correction (the 

“Respondent”). Based upon a review of the filings, the arguments made therein, and the law of 

Arkansas, the Commission hereby finds as follows: 

1. Claimant filed his claim on March 8, 2024, seeking $10,000.00 in damages related 

to his allegations about Respondent’s employee falsifying disciplinary records and abusing him.  

2. Respondent filed an answer denying liability. 

3. Claimant requested a hearing, then filed a motion to compel and motion for default 

judgment.  

4. In its December 13, 2024, order, the Commission noted that Claimant’s claim may 

be outside the jurisdiction of the Commission and found it prudent and efficient to address any 

jurisdictional concerns before the parties and the Commission expended more time and resources. 

The Commission directed the parties to file briefs addressing whether the Commission has 

jurisdiction over this claim and placed the claim in an abeyance pending a decision on the 

jurisdictional issue.  

5. Respondent filed a brief in response to the Commission’s directive, arguing, inter 

alia, dismissal is proper because Claimant’s claim relates to a disciplinary matter, and the 

Commission does not have jurisdiction over Claimant’s claim.  
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6. Claimant filed brief in response to the Commission’s directive,1 arguing, inter alia, 

Respondent’s employee maliciously falsified documents, which affected his parole.   

7. The Commission agrees with Respondent that dismissal of this claim is proper. 

Claimant’s claim is inexorably entwined with a disciplinary incident. For these reasons, this claim 

is beyond the scope and purpose of the Commission. 

8. If Claimant believes he has federal law claims against individual employees of 

Respondent or believes he was deprived of due process in the disciplinary process, those claims 

can be brought in a court of general jurisdiction. The Commission does not have jurisdiction to 

hear such claims. See Ark. Code Ann. § 25-44-204. 

9. As such, pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. § 25-44-204 and Ark. R. Civ. P. 12(h)(3), 

Claimant’s claim is DISMISSED. 

10. Any pending motions are denied as moot.   

11. The Commission notes that Claimant has made filings that contain statements about 

Respondent’s actions, which are not directly related to this claim. To the extent that Claimant 

believes he has additional claims against Respondent, those claims may be pursued pursuant to the 

Arkansas Rules of Civil Procedure. 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 Claimant also filed a request for an extension of time to respond to the Commission’s directive. The Commission 
GRANTS this requests and considers Claimant’s response to the Commission’s directive to be timely filed.  
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
      Sylvester Smith 
 
              
      DATE: September 5, 2025 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 Notice(s) which may apply to your claim 
 
(1) A party has forty (40) days from transmission of this Order to file a  Motion for Reconsideration or a  Notice of Appeal 

with the Claims Commission. Ark. Code Ann. § 25-44-211(a)(1). If a  Motion for Reconsideration is denied, that 
party then has twenty (20) days from transmission of the denial of the Motion for Reconsideration to file a  Notice of 
Appeal with the Claims Commission. Ark. Code Ann. § 25-44-211(a)(1)(B)(ii). A decision of the Claims 
Commission may only be appealed to the General Assembly. Ark. Code Ann. § 25-44-211(a)(3). 
 

(2) If a  Claimant is awarded less than $15,000.00 by the Claims Commission at hearing, that claim is held forty (40) 
days from the date of disposition before payment will be processed. See Ark. Code Ann. § 25-44-211(a). Note: This 
does not apply to agency admissions of liability and negotiated settlement agreements. 
 

(3) Awards or negotiated settlement agreements of $15,000.00 or more are referred to the General Assembly for approval 
and authorization to pay. Ark. Code Ann. § 25-44-215(b). 
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